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Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 94 Westbank Expre~way - Suite B, Gretna, LA 70053 

Honorable Mayor and Members of th~~ City Counei of the City of Gretna, Louisiana 
We have audited the aceompauying genre'at purpose fmancinl s~temants of the City of~ Lo-~,~*. as of Nlurch 31, 1997, ~ for the year then ended as listed in the table of contents. These firamc~l sU~men~ ire the msponsibiliW of the City of Or~m~ Lo.;~in managemen~ Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conduct~.d our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing ~dards, Govenxment Auditing Standard~ issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the provisions of Office of Mau~t.'ment and Budget Circular Ao128, "Audits of State and l~a] Governments". Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require tha~ We plan and perform the audit t:. obt~fin reasonable assurance aboul whether the general purpose financial statements ate free of material misstatement. An audit inciudes ~xatmlning, on a test basis, evidenac~ supposing the amounts aud disclosures in these financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant o.~'timates made by mauagement, as well as evaluating the overall genea'al propose financial statetnents presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the genera] purpose financial sunements sefenred to above preset fairly, in all material r~s~cts, the financial position of the City of Gretna, Louisiana, as of Match 31, 1997, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the yam then ended in conformity with genes'ally ~w.eepted accounting principh~. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have: also issued a I~.port dated September 15, 1997 on our consideration of the City of Gretna's internal control structure: and a report dated September 15, 1997 on its complianen with laws and regulations. Our audit w~Ls made for the purpose Of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The aceompauymg schedule of federal financial assistance and the combining and ittdlvidual fund and account group financial statements listed in the table of contents are presented for purpo~'~es of additional analysis and a.re not a required part of the general pu~ose financial statement of the City. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose tinaucial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material re~ in relation to the genea~l purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Gretna, Louisiana September 15, 1997 
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CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA COMBINED BALANCE SIIEET-AI~ FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS MARCH 31,1997 

ASSETS Cash a~: cash w~vat~ $ Investments Receivables (net where applicable, of alIowaneas for uni~ollexaibias) Taxes Servio." charges At.trued reve/luas Other InventoD, Due from other funds Prepaid e~:pertsas Restricted assets Cash lnvestraents Properly, plant and ~quil~lent (net, where applicable, of accumulated depreciation) Amount ~.vailable in Debl Service Funds for retil~ement of general long tel'm debt Amount to be provided for retil~ement of general long.term debt TOTAL ASSETS 

3~,9M 147~ 
519,792 156,092 0 0 7,051 1,053,812 0 137,673 1,211,499 
0 
0 
0 $ 3~537~322 

SPECIAL ~EVEh'I~ DEBT SERVICE 
716,281 S 47"2,9116 477,425 734,263 
181,775 0 0 73,973 0 178,2.53 0 0 0 
0 
0 
0 

The accompaaying notes ate: an integral part of this statement. -2- 

56,365 0 3,293 0 0 75,1)61 0 0 0 
0 
0 
0 $ 1,341196~8 

CAPITAL PROJECT~ 
522,361 
70,122 0 0 12,858 0 782,921 0 271,966 0 
0 
0 
0 



(Continued) 

PROPREETARY I~rND T~I~ 

106,197 403,154 
37,199 330.257 0 13,653 0 292,271 0 85,153 191,009 

GENERAL FIXED ASSE'I~ 
0 $ 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

~177~19 29,528,455 
0 
0 

GENERAL LONG-TERM D~'~ 
0 $ 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

0 1~41,967 
0 $ 29t528~455 -.__ 5~516,181 $ 6.858.148 

-3- 

TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONL~ 
1.713.744 2.284.672 
865,253 486,349 3,293 100,484 7,051 2,382.318 0 494,792 1,402,508 
38,705,974 
1,341,967 

--. 5,516,181 $.,m, 5513041586 



 CITY OF GRI~TNA, LOUISIANA COMBINED BALANCE SHEET-AI.L FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS MARCII 31,1997 

LIABILITI[ES AND FUND F_~|JITY 
Liabilities Accounts payable Contracts payable Rctainagc!; payable Accrued e~p~cs Duc to other funds Court bord end refundable dcposRs U nearned revenues General obligation bonds and debts payable TOTAL LIABILITIELS 
Fund equity Contributed capital lnvestmem in general ftxczt esse~s Retained earnings Reserved for pttmt rcpfaocmcnt and ~xtenslon Unresen,cd Fund balan~ Reserved fi)r encumbrances Reserved fi)r inventoD' Reserved for debt service Unrescrved Undesignated TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE TOTAL FUND EQUITY 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

336,034 0 0 1,091,982 136,648 42,834 202,920 0 _ 1,810.~!L 
0 0 

SPECIAL BEVENIIE 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 19,175 0 0 _ 132p327 _ 151,502 _ 151,502 

DEBT KERVICE 

$ 0 $ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 
0 0 0 0 1,341,968 0 I ~341 t968 " 1~341,968 

CAI~ITAL PROJECTS 

0 74L515 24,982 0 84.922 O 0 0 S52 4~22 
0 0 
0 0 50~,499 0 0 ..___A4 ~6 6_~53 

The accompanying notes arc an integraJ part of this statement -4. 



PROPRIETARY TYPE 

189,797 $ 0 0 338 773,761 201,470 0 159r952 . 1,325~318 
4,473,649 0 
18,863 (5,181,418) 

___._(.~162,555) _9.311~094 

GENERAL FIXED ASSF21~ 

0 
0 29,528,455 
0 0 0 o o 0 o 29.528,455 

GENERAL LONG*TERM DEBT 

0 0 
0 0 o 0 o 0 0 o 

$ 

TOTAL (MEMORANDUM 

615,049 742,518 24,982 1,092,320 2,382,31S 244,304 202,920 7,0181100 12,322,51J 
14,473,649 29,528,455 
18,863 (5,181,418) 570,623 7,051 1,341,968 , 21222,884 0,020,029) 42,982~075 



 



 

CAPITAL PROJ~X~ 
I,I15,.~0 0 336,7|4 0 0 0 33..~_~7__ 1,485,351 
1,443 0..~.00 ~ I ~443~0~0 
2,928_.351 
(I 0 3,442,487 0 0 
3,442,487 
0 0 3,442,48.7_ 

~ . $ 92~1152" 
-7- 

(MEMORANDUM 
7,800,369 ~g605 2,602,5"11 616,040 333,944 217,2".44 255,010.. 12,601,773 
1,605,332 1,6o5,3~2__ 14t207~1C'5 
I,I 19,653 5,682.408 5,617,431 263,743 92,332 345,000 322,503_ 13,443,070 
1,805r332 1,805r337._ ~ 50.48,40"2. 
(I,041,297) 
5,183~823 4.142.526.. 



REVENUES Taxes Licevy~ a~d permits Inlcrgovemme~Ud Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Miscellany,as IntereSt TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENEItAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL FROJECTS F'UND TYPES YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating vans fcrs in TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Current General government Public safety Public works h/LiS C~ I Iane OLL~ Debt service Principa~ refi~ment ImeTest and lis~e] charges TOTAL EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING USES Openiting tre.as fers out TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

776,605 1,047,678 120,192 333,944 197,032 113#34 7,149,352 
0 0 
7,149#$2 
1,119,653 4,318,170 1,435.872 92,332 0 0 6,966,027 
I 10,332 110,332 7#76~359 

GENERAL FUND 
ADJUSTMENT TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE I J~D.T.F.,.A~ BUDGETARY BUDGET ~JNlrAYORAlgl .E~ 

0 0 
0 
(11,651) 1,572 37,100 0 0 0 27,02 0 0 27.021 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REV]SNUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 72,993 (27,021) 

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 1,653,911 $ 1~726~904 S g.92g 

The accompanying notes are an integral part offltis statement. -8. 

$ 4,$60~67 $ 4,315,300 $ 245,267 776,60$ 698,500 U.105 1,047,678 857,178 190,500 120,192 106,100 14,0q2 333,944 300,000 33.944 197,032 110,600 86,432 113r334 I00,000 . 13r334 7,149,352 6,477,678 671,674 
0 0 0 0 0 0 
7~ 149~352 6fl77,678 . 6716~474 
1,108,002 4,319,742 1,472,972 92,332 0 0 
1,106,549 4,139,337 1,660,550 106,025 0 0 6,993,048 7,012,461 

110~32 . 110~32 110232 ..-- 110,332 
19.413 0 

7~103r350 . 7.122.793 . 19,413 

1,634,983 S 1,680T955 



REVENIJE3 

CITY OF GREYI~~ lOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE& EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BA]..ANCES-BUi~;ET AND ACTUAL GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT sERVICE AND, CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND TYPES (CONTINUED) YEAR |~NI)ED MARCH 31,1997 

Tax~$ Li~ md IXfm~ ] n t ~r gov( ~1111~Irltll Chasges for servic~s Fines anti forfeitures Misccllatlcous Interest TOTAL REVENUES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating ~crs in TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL REVENUF~c; AND OILIER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDD"URE.S Current General ~ovemment Public safc~ Public works CuRurc ~01d recitation Miscellaneous Debt Service Principal retirement Interest w~d fiscal charges TOTAL EXPENDI'rURES OTIIER FINANCING USES Opcmtinf transfers out TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS 

$ 1,447,895 $ 0 1,218,179 495,848 0 20,202 56,498 3.238,622 
05 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
1,447,S95 $ @ 1,21LI~ 495,1~ 0 20,202 
1,445,100 $ 0 1.120,000 544,800 0 27,500 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (I~NFAVORARLEt 
2~5 0 (48,952) 0 0,29S) 56,495. 40,500 15,998 3,238,622 3,177,900 60,722 

162,332 162~3~ 0 0 
0 

0 0 2,367,053 

0 (141,679) 0 (110) 0 0 o 
0 1,222,559 739,072 263,633 0 
0 ,215,776 778,861 320,108 0 0 0 0 2,225,264 0 2314,745 

0 (6,783) 39.789 56,475 0 0 0 (141,789) 0 89,48 0 0 4~062,053 41_789 89.48 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (661,099) 141,789 
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OFYEAR ATEND OF YEAR 

(Continued) 

812,601 60.964 



REVENUES 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEME/Cr OF REVENUE& EXPENDITORES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDG[rr AND ACTUAL GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DElft SERVICE, AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND ")'YPF.~CONTINUED) YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

Taxes Li~tses mid permits intcrgovenLmenta] Charges for services Fines and forf~itm~ Miscellaneous IntereSt TOTAL REVENUES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating h~msfers in TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Current General govcrrmaent Public safety Public work~; Culture and i~efeation Miscellaneous Debt service Principa~ retirement Interest and liscal charges TOTAL EXPENDITURES fJTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers out TOTAL OTIIER FINANCING USES TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 

52T081 728,448 
0 0 

345,000 322r503. 667,503 
0 0 

ADJUSTMENT TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE BUDGETARy BUDGET /UNFAVORABI .l~J 

0 0 
0 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 52,oa L 72s,44s 
0 0 0 0 

II 0 0 0 0 0 11~08 I 11,092 
0 

345,000 345,000 0 322,503. 324~802 667,'503 669,802 2,299 
0 0 667,502. , 669,802 . 45~9898 

1281,023 $ 1341968 $ 0 0 

-10- 

1,2sl,o23 S 113411968 



REVENUES 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-BUDGETAND ACTUAL GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND "fYI'ES (CONTINUED) YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

Taxes Li~ases md permits lntergovemmental Charges for ~rvices Fines and forfeitures Miscelhmoous Interest TOTAl. REVENUES OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers ia TOTAl, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES TOTAl. REVENUES AND OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Current General government Public safely Public wolks Culture and recreation Miscellaneous Debt service Principal retiremem Interest and fiscal charges TOTAL, EXPENDITURES OTIIER FINANCING USES Operating lyarts fers out TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES TOTAL AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
ADJU~rMENT TO BUDGI'TfARV BASIS ACTUAl, ~~~UF..&,5~ 

77~605 2,602,571 616,040 333,944 217,7.34 255,010 12,601,773 

1,119,653 5,682,408 5,617A31 263,743 92,332 345,000 322)503. 13,443,070 

0 
(11,651) (140,107) 284,966 (110) 0 0 0 133,098 
0 0 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (1,041,297) (133,0981 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 5,183,822 $ 4114215255 I437.525 570 62] 

The accompar ying notes are e,n mt~g, ral part of this statement. -12- 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE 
$ 7,1100,369 $ 7,461,756 $ 3~tg.613 7"/6,60~ 6S8,J00 111,105 Z61~.,571 2,293,178 3O9,393 616,040 650,900 (34,860) 333,944 300,000 33.944 217,234 138,100 79,134 255,010 209,500 45,S10_ 12,601,773 11,741,934 859,839 
1~605,332 1,605,332 1,605,332 11605,332 0 0 

1,108,002 5,542,301 5,902,397 263,633 92,332 
1,106,549 5,355,113 6,817,686 320.108 106,025 

(I,4531 (187,1881 915,289 56,475 13,693 345,000 345,000 0 322r503 , 324)802 2,299 13,576,168 14,375,283 799,115 
1,805~332 11805,332 0 1,805,332 1,805,332 15,3811500 161180,615 0 

4,746.297 $ 3.571.902 



 



 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVFI~IES Net Income (loss) for the year Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities Depreciation (Increase) deorease in trade accounts receivable Increase (decrease) in accounts payable Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses Increase (decrease) in customer deposits Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchases of property and equipment Purchase of investment~ NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVFFIF.S 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Repaymant of loans from other funds Loans from other funds Contributed capital NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR CASH AT END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes are ml integral part of this statement. -14- 

$ 3,761 
556,892 (29,883) (139,875) (11,432) 3,475 12,172 395.110 
(792,432) (419)163) 
108,183 273,420 466,187 847.790 
31)305 160.045 



 
OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES 'TO FINANCIAL STA.TEM~NTS MARCH 31,1997 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC~2t~ The City of Cnema was inenrpomted in June 1913. under the r~ovisiuns of the Lawrason Act. The Cily operales under a Mayor and City Council form of government and provides the following so.ices as s~orized by its chatter: public safety (police and fire), streets, drainage, sanitation, health, social service~, roert.~on, public improvements, pluming and zoning, and general adminiswafive so.ices. The accounting policies of the City of Gretna conform to generally ac~'pted accounting principles ns applicable to governments. The following i.~ a summary of the more significant policies: 1. Financiul Reporting Entity The accompanying financial stalements include all funds and acommt grottps of the CAW of Grelm. Theee me no mmpment units whi(~h are controlled by or dependent on the City which shunld be included to form the repolling untity. The ~it~:a used in determining what accounting entities, agencies, commlssiun.~ beards and authorities as part of the City of Gtetoa's operations include budget adoption, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election or appointment of governing body, and other general ov~sight responsibility. There are: no other agencies, organizations or activities meeting any of the above: c~riteria that are excluded from the City's reporting entity. The following organizations conduct an activity entirely within the City for the benefit of the City's residents but are not considered a part of the reporting entity because the City does not exercise oversight responsibility over them. David Crockett Volunteer Fire Company Gould Volunteer Fire Cunlpany Gretna Senior Citizen Center 2. Basis of Presentation The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accounting enti .ty. The operations of nsch fund are accounted for with a separaT~e set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditur~ or expenses, as appnppriale. Government resources me ~lIocated to and accounted for m individual funds based upon the purposes for which they me to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped in the financial statements in this repo~ into five gencric fund types, two broad fund categories and two accolmt groups as follows: GOVERNMEIVFAL FUNDS GENERAL FUND - to account for all activities of the City not accounted for in &rtother fund, SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - to account for the pro~eds of specific revenue sources that are restricted to expenditures fol specified purposes. DEBT SERVICE FUND - to account for the accarnuintion of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debl principal, interest, and related costs. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - to account for financial resources to be used for the atxluisition or constraetion of major capital facilities (other thml those financed by Proprietary Funds). PROPRIETARY FUNDS ENTERPRISE FUNDS - to account for the operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private businer~ enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

-15- 



 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIF, S (CONTINUED) ACCOUNT GROUPS GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - used to accounl for the gcocral fixed assets of the City other than those accounted for i~ proprietary fund types. GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT - used to account for long-term liabilities expected to be fmanc~ from governmental funds Long-term liabilities directly related to and expected to be paid from the Proprietary Fund are trot included in the acaoun~s of that fund. 

All ptoprintmy funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resoltrcas measurement focus, with ~ measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the oparaliun of these funds are included on the balance shceL Fuzhd equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-typa operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net total assets. The nlodified accrual basis of accounting is used by all govemmenad fund types and agency funds. Under the modified accaxtal basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both mensurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the |ransaetlon can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expanditums m'e recorded when the: relaled fund liability is incurred Principal and interest on general long-term debt me recorded as fi.md liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year. Those revenues susceptible: to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, lioelLse.s, interest revenue and charges for services. Sales taxes collected and held by the parish at year-end on behalf of the City arc also recognized as revenue. Fines, permits and parking meter rcvealues are not susceptible to aoccual b~?~lse generally they are not measurable until received in cash Tae ar;cmal basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fend types. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expen.,~s are incurred. 

4. Statement of Cash Flows For pu rposes of the statement of cash flows, the Municipal Waterworks System Fund and the Municipal Sewer System Fund considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents 

-16- 



 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM]~NTS MARCII 31, 1997 

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POIACIES (CONTINUED) 5. Budgets and Budgetary Aeenunfing The procedun~s used by tht: City in establishing the budgctmy data reflected in the financial statements arc as follows a. Not less than 30 days before the end of the fiscal year, fi',e Mayor recommends to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means offiunncing them. b. The proposed budget is summarized end advertised and the public notified tha~ the proposed budget is available for inspecuen end that within l 0 d~s thereafter public hearings are conducted to obtein taxpayer commenls. c, The budget is then legally enanted through Aldmmanie ordimmce. d. Any revisions that alter the total expundinues of a department or line item changes within the depa,"anent must be approved by the Board of A]dennen. The level of budget control is at the division, delmrtmcot, or project level; and expendim~es/coc~abrances may not exceed appropriations tmfil additional appropriations have been provided. Formal budgetmy integration is employed as e management conU'ol device during the year for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Projects Fund, aud Proprietmy Enterprise Funds. Efl~,-~tivecontrolofcOSt is, therefore, maintained by Aldermen actiontha2 approves a budget for each project and is controlled on a project life basis. f. Budgets for the Oene~ral Fund, Special Revenue Fun~s. Debt Service Funds, Capital Projects Fund and Proprietary Enterprtse Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year of incorrence of the commitment to purchase, Budgetary comparisons presented for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, end Capital Projects fi, md in the accompanying financial City Council. g. All unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end ofe:ach fiscal year 6. Encumbrances Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order Io reserve thai portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the govemmcn~l fund types, Encumbeences outstanding at the e~d of the fiscal year are reported as reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditmes or liabililies. 7. Valuation Basis of Assets and Liabilities a. Cash and cash equivalents. Louisiana revised statutes attthorizo the City to invest in United States Bonds, treasury notes or certificates, time certificates of deposit or any other federally insmed investment. At year end, the carrying amount of the City's cash was $2,347,535 and the: bank balance was $2,576.909 which include $165,346 in certificates of deposit. Of the bank balance, $276,346 was covered by federal depository insurance, $2,300,563 was covered by collateral held by the pledging financial institution's ageot in the City's name. b. Investments. The City owns $734,263 in U. S. Trensury Bills that ase carried at cost. Thecurre~',tmarketvalueofthesesecurhies is $732,763 and $739,000 (par value). The City's level of risk al year end includes this investment which is insured or registered. with securities held by the City or its agent in the City's name. c. Louisiana Asset Management Pool. The City had investments totaling $2,813,917 in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). LAMP is an investment pool established as a cooperative effor~ to enable public entities of the State of Louisiana to aggregate funds for investments. The pooling is intended to improve adminismttive efficiency end increase investment yield. LAMP is a cooperative endeavor formed, in part, on reliance upon Opinion 92-192 issued by the Louisiana Attorney Genera)'s Office which noted thai: public entities may pool funds for invesunent purposeS. 
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 CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOT]~ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
7. Valuation Basis of Assets ind Liabilities (Continued) Under state law, LAMP may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the [awl of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United States. LAMP's permissible inv.esmlents are set forth in Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.)33.2955 and are further limited it, accordance with investment guidelines promulgated by the board of directors. LAMP's S~m~t of Investment Guidelines unthorizes investment in various invcsm~enl pl'oducts, including Uinted States Treasury bills or notes, Federal Home Loan Bank discount notes, Federal National Mortgage Association discount notes, and other investments ave: approved by the board of ditchers To provide for the required liquidity for withdrawals ~om LAMP, all investments shall have, at the time of purcha~ a maximmo I~'ntlninR I~aatl~ly of 397 days and the dollar w~ighted average maturity of LAMP ~all not ~enendly exceed 90 dayr~ LAMP's in~ m stszed nt amoaiand an~ using the su'alght-method of amortization. Allowance for Estimated Uncollectible Receivables, An allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is established based on historical collection exp~ience and other ralevanl cilcur~qancos. The allowance for estin~ted uncollectlbles at March 31, 1997, consists of the following amounts: General Fund Special Revenue Funds Fire Protection Garbage Fee Reere.stion Social Services For'l'he Aged Street Light Improvements Ambulance Enterprise Funds Municipal Waterworks System Municipal Sewer System TOTAL 

$ gg,723 48,802 5,455 18,685 2,037 20,950 ~2,2.,1~ 118,319 40,485 __(ghl.l~ 106.604 $ 313.646 Inventories The cost of materials and supplies for the Governmental Funds, except the Garbage Tax Fund, are considered c)cpenditures at the time of purchase. In the opinion of nmnagernent, the inventory of such materials and supplies would not be material to the financial statements. Inventories of the Propriata~ Funds and the Garbage Tax Fund me recorded at cost on the fh-st -in firsl-out basis. Fixed assets and Lung Term Liabilities. The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fLxed asse~ and long-term liabilities associated with a pm'tlculas fund are determined by the fund's measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities ere generally included on their balance shee~. Their reported fund balance: (net current assets) is considered a mcasure of "available spendable resources". Governmental fxmd operating statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decroa.ses (expenditures and other fmencing uses) in net current assets, Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of soumes end uses of"available spendable msunrces" during a period. Fi,~ed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are accoanted for in the General Fixed Assets Accoant Group, rather than in governmental funds. Such assets are valued at historical cost, if purchased, and at fair market value at date of gRt, if donate~. P~blio-domaln ("inf~nsla,actere") general freed esSets consisting if ~ctaln improvements other than buildings, including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, sweets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems, me capitalized as general fixed assets. No depreciation has beam provided for assets accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, nor has interest been capiudized during the aceluisifiun period of such assets. Fixed assets of the Proprietary Funds are recorded at CnsL ]fpurchascd, and at fair market value at date ofgiR, if donated. Major additions are capitalized while maintenance and repairs which do not improve or extend the life of the respecOve assets are charged to expense. Contributions received in aid of constm0~ico are credited to contributions accounts and do not reduce the cost of the assets acquired with such contributions. 
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 CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO ]I~qANClAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIfiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIF, S (CONTINUED) 7. Valuation Basis of Assets and Liabiiities (Continued) Deprceiation is provided on the straight-line method for fixed a.'~ets of the Proprietmy Funds. are used for depreciation purposes: pESCRIEIJDjS Utility plants, stations and lines Building and improvements Furniture and fixtures Vehicles and equipment 

~XF, bBS 3(~-50 40 I0 4-10 Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the Genmd Long-Term Debt Account Group, not in the governmental funds. The two account groups (General Fixed Asse~ and General l.,ong-Texm Debt) are not "fimds*. They are concerned only with mensumments of fmaneial position and are not involved with mcesusemant of results of operatious, ]~:ecause of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types excludes amounts represented by non-current liabilities. Since they do not affect net emvent assets, such lung-term amounts ure not recognized as governmental ~Jnd type expenditures or fired liabilities. They are instead reported as liabilities in the General Lung-Term Debt Account Group. 8. Revenues and Expenditure Recognition a. Ad Valorem Taxes. Ad Valorem taxes are recognized in the fiscal year in which the taxes are levied. Taxes are due and become an enforceable lien on property on the fn-st day of the month following the filing of the tax mils by the assessor with the Louisiarm Tax Commi,~iun (usually Decenlber l ). Cily taxes are billed sud collected by the City. Taxes become delinquent on January Ist in the year af~"r levy. Taxes are levied on property values determined by the Jefferson Parish Assessofs Office. All land and residential improvernents are assessed at 10 pem~t-6f its fair market value and other property at ] 5 percem of its fear market value. Ad valorem taxes ate levied (per $1,000 asse~:l value) in varying amounts for maintenance and operatiou, debt service and capital improvcrrRents for the City and are distributed to its funds as follows: 
FUND General Fund Fire Protection Fund Recreation Fund Street Light Improvement Fund Ambulance Fund Services For The Aged Municipal Sewer System Fund 

1996 .MIIA.,MLE 12.10 10.48 4.29 3.81 3.81 .48 
..39.17 h. Revenues Susceptible to Acerual. Under the modified acc,Tual basis of accotmting, some revenues are susceptible to accrual while others are not. Major revenues treated as susceptible to accrual ~re property taxes, sales taxes, utility franchise taxes, and certain state shared revenues such as tobacco tax and beer tax. 9. Total Columns on Combined Statements Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Menlol'andum Only" to indicate that the~, are presented only to fecilitale tinancial analysis Data in these columns do not present financial position and results of operations in conformity with generally accept<.~d accounting principles, lnterfund eliminstious have not beam made in the aggregabon of this data. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP AND ACCOUNTABILITY 1. Deficit Fund Balances or ]~etoined Earnings The following funds have deficits in fund balance or retained earnings in the indicated amounts: 
Garbage Ta3: Ambulance Municipal Waterworks System Municipal S(,'wer Sy.qmn 

$ (7,398) (]S0,762) (2,426,828) (2,735,728) The deficit in the Ambulance Fund is due primarily to a ~ha~ge in rcimbursem~t policy by Medicare and Medicaid. The City's management is aware of the problem and is considering alternative funding methods to adequately fund the operations of this fund The deficit in retained earnings of the Municipal Waterworks and Municipal Sewer Systems were due primarily to user tales thal were insufficiant to cover depreciation charges coupled with total actual revenues falling short of those anticipated in the budget. The City's management has adjusted rates and operates these funds at a near break even level. 2. Excess of Expunditures ansi Encumbrances Over Approprintiuns The following funds experienced expenditures and encaunbnmces in excess of approprintions in the indicated amounts: EXPF.aNDITURES IN EXCESS 
Ambulance Fund Garbage Tax Fund Fire Protection Fund Municipal Waterwords Fund Municipal Sewer Fund 

$ 3,802 22,384 2,981 76,652 50,727 The major factor contributing to the excess expcndito~-s in th~~~ funds arc: Uuderbudgeted salaries and insurance expenses in the Ambulance Fund. Underbudgeted garbage pickup charges in the Garbage Tax Fmtd. Unbudgeted audit fees in the Fire Protection Fund Underbudgeted depreciation in the Municipal Waterworks and Municipal Sewer Fund. 



 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO I~ANCIkL STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 

NOTE C - NOTES ON INDMDUAL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS 
a. General Fixed Assets. A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows: 
Land Buildings and Improvemel~ Furniture, fixtures and equiptnent Vehicles and road machinery Constr~ction in progress TOTAL 

BALANCE MARCH 31 
$ 91,317 22,122,713 1,850,562 2,870,253 890_221 

$ 0 716,503 86,551 396,989 _.1.393.567 
$ 0 0 0 0 g90.274 

BALANCE MARCH 31, 
$ 91,317 22,839.216 1,937,113 3,267,242 1.393_5~,7 $ 27.825.0(345 $ ._,2.593.610 $ , g90:22~ $ 29.52g.45_~5 

b. Construction in Progrel~. Construction in progress is eotnlmst~ofthefollowing: 

Gretna Boulevard Expansiov Heebe Canal Improvement $ 1,326,217 505,000 
EXPENDED MARCH 31, 1997 $ 935,248 458,319 

ENTERED MARCH 31, 1997 $ 179,128 52,681 
FUND BALANCE DESIGNATED MARCH 31, 1997 $ 179,128 52,681 

c. Enterprise Funds Fixed Assets. A summary of enterprise ftmd~ pl~pcrty, plant and equipment at March 31, 1997 follows: 
Land Buildings and improvemenls Furniture and fixtures Automotive Equipment Less: Accumulated depreciation Net property, plant and equipment 

$ 53,1)40 3,812,531 6,612 244,177 4.578.892 8,695,252 4.915.909 $ 3.779.343 

MUNICWAL SEWER SYSTEM $ 246,948 5,938,685 0 204,322 4.435.606 10,825,561 5.427_385 $ 5.398.176 2. Liabilities Compensated absences. Employees are required to use their anneal leave in the year earned. All employees are allowed to accrue a maxiroum of 45 days sick leave which will be paid upon termination. A liability is reported in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group representing the accumulatc:d sick leave as of March 31, 1997 in the amount of $788,148. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31., 1997 NOTE C - NOTES ON INDIVIDUAl., FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUI~ (CONTINUED) 3. Long-Term Debt a. Changes in Lang..Term Debt. The following is a smama~ of the long-team debt ~ons of the city for the ~ year ended March 31. 1997. 

Ball,nee at beginning of year Bonds Compensated absences Leases 
Additions (deletions) dining the: year Compensated absences Bonds retired Lease payments Bal~a~ce at end of yent 

GENERAL DEBT $ 0 735,569 fl 735,569 
52,579 0 fl $ 788.)48 

REVENUE BONDS TOTAL $ 6,415,000 0 0 6,415,000 
0 O45,000) 0 $ 6.070.000 

$ 6,415,000 735,569 0 7,150,569 
52,579 (345,000) 0 $ 6.858.148 b. Description of Debt. Long-term debt at March 31, 1997 is comprised of the following individual bonds: Revenue Bonds (Payable from sales tax revenues): $1,730,000 1988 Sales Tax Bonds due in annual installments of $300,000 to $395,000 through March 3 l, 1999; interest at 7.0 to 7.4 p~cent. Revenue bonds (Payable from sales tax revenues): $5,355,000 1993 Sales Tax Bonds due in annual installmentq 0f$50,000 to $725,000 through March 31, 2010; interest at 4.1 to 5.5 percent c. Summary of Debt Service Requirements to Ma~rily. The annual requirements ~o amo~J~e all debt oulslanding as of March 31, 1997, including interesl payments 0f$1,784,863 are as fnllnws: YEAR ENDING MARCK~ 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003-2010 

BONDS REVENUE $ 662,878 659,757 705,610 774,422 775,297 4.276.899 $ 7.854.863 $1,341,968 is uvallable in the Debt Service Funds to service the revenue bonds. There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the bond indenture. The City is in compliance with all significant limitations told restrictions. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31, 1997 NOTE; C - NOTES ON INDIVIDUAL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED) 4. lnterfund Trmnnetions Individual fund interred receivables and payables at March 31, 1997, were as follows: I1rND General Special Revenue Fire ProW~tion Garbage Fee Riverboat Casino Revenue R~co :~'~e~ Light lmprovanant Ambulance -Social Services for the Aged Capital Projects Enterprise Municipal Waterworks Syst~ Municipal Sewer Sysiem Debt Service 5. Segments of Enterpri~ Activities 

Op~rating revenue Dq)reciation Operating income Ooss) Net income (loss) Property, plant, mid equipment net Net working capital (excluding liabilities payable from restricted asserts) Total astmts Total fund equity 

1,053,812 52,0OO 410 119,520 1,7"/6 0 0 4,547 782,921 78,705 213,566 --- 75_061 $ - 2.382.318 MUNICIPAL WATERWORKS SYSTEM $ 1~95,103 $ 240.465 $ (84,6741 $ (70,197) $ 3,779,344 $ (274,029) $ 4,480,265 $ 3,493,705 

$ 136,648 45,759 82,714 1,027,816 20,132 0 210,566 0 84,922 621,004 152,757 0 $ 2.382_318 MUNICIPAL SEWER SYSTEM $ 1,365,799 $ 316,427 $ 095,228) $ 73,960 $ 5,398,175 $ 492,864 $ 6,156,146 $ 5,817,389 6. Contributed Capital An analysis of the changes in the contributions accounts for the year ended March 31, 1997 appears iLS follows: 
Municipal Waterworks System Fond 

SPECIAL REVENUE FEDERAL STATE RATE FUNDS ~..Q~I[~ M ENT GOVERNMENT PAYERS MUNICIPALITY Balmlce at March31, 1996 $ 45,964 Contributions received during the year ended Match 31, 1997 O Balance at March 31, 1997 $ 45.964 TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL Municipal Sewer System Fund Balm:ce at March 31, 1996 $ 265,816 Contributions received during the year ended _ 200.000 Balance at March 31, 1997 $ .465.816 TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 

$ 1,920,850 0 $ _..~XS-Q 
$ 254,834 
$---2~,8.3A 
-23. 

$ 1,014,338 $ 1,633,141 $ 1,232,819 73.420 $ 1-087-758 9 $ 1.633.141 0 $ ._.J,.._ 232.819 
$ 80,028 $ 0 $ 7,752,439 0 $ go.o2...___.~ . O s. 0 0 $~ 



NOTE D - PENSION PLANS 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 

Plan Membership. Sub~antially all of the City's cmploycc~,, ~xc;ept ~ poli~~ (~lployfes, are II(tenthel's of Plan A of the Morticipal Employees' Retirement Sy~em of Louisiana. Pollee employees hired sfler June 30, 1973, and those employed prior to that date who elected to join are members of the State Municipal Police Employees' Retirenlent System. Both plans me rest sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pla~s. At March 31, 1997, the City had 209 employees of which approxintately 57% wexe participanls in the Plan A System and 36% were participant in the State Municipal Police Employees Retirement System. Under this Syste~ a member is eligible for normal retirement if he has at lust 30 years of creditable service rega~l~~ of age, or 25 years of eredirable service end is at least 55 years old, or 10yenrs ofeseditable service und is at lenst 60 years old. The monthly tefitement benefit undm'this System is equal to three perc~at of the members average monthly compensation for rely 36 months of ~~J~euttve service in which mmpunsation was highest, multiplied by ye~-s of creditable se~ice, not to exceed 100% of members final compe~mion. Ret~ement benefits axe payable monthly for the life of the retiree, and upon the retiree's death under cermln conditions are payable 1o the reliree's surviving sponse and minor children. Under this System, a member is eligible for normal retirement if he has at least 20 yenrs of service and at least age 55, or 12 yenrs of eelyice and at least age 60. The munthly retirement benefit andre this System is equal to 3 1/3% of the member's average monthly compensation for any 36 months of consecotivc service in which compensation was highasl~ multiplied by years of creditable service, no~ to exceed 100% of member's fmai compensation. Retirenumt benefits are payable monthly for the life of the retiree, and upon the retiree's death, under certain conditions, are payable to the retiree's surviving spouse and minor childrl.'n. ContributioJ~_~ Employees covered under Plan A of the Municipal Employees' Retirem~at system of Loulsiena are required to conlribute 9.25% of their salary, l:'mplnycos covered reader the State Municipal Poliea Employee's Retirement Systen~ are req~'ed to cont,-il~ 7.5% of their earnable compensation (includes sta~ supplemental pay but excludes overtime pay). The City conlributes beth the employee and employer amounts for both plans and takes no deduction from the employees' pay for employees hired prior to April I, 1990. Employees hired on or after April 1, 1990 must make their own conlribetio/k~. The City's coa~butions to the two pe~iun plans and the percent of covered payrolls for the year ended March 3 I, !997 were as follows: COWrRmU'XI.~-qS State Plan A Retirement System $ 370,1"19 State Police Retirement System $ 334,491 Total Covel~l Payroll Total Payroll 
$ 2,446,3O6 2.027.2~ $ 4,473,545 $ 4,595,843 The amount shown below as the "pension benefit obligation~ is a stundardir~ disclosure measnre of the present value of ponsion benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases, estimated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the acmmial preset value of credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the System's fundiog s~:~tus ot~ a going-concexn hasis, and assess progress made in accumulating sufficient asse~ to pay b~eft~ when due. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the System. Information concerning the actuarial p:esetu value ot credited projected benefas and assets available for benefits which are relevant to the City are not available beeans~ such determinations are made on a statewide basis end not for individual p~ticipating municipalities. Actuarial information for this Rstir~netu System as a whole as of June 30, 1996 (the latest date for which such information is available at the date of this report) is presented below: "/'he 1996 unfunded pension benefit obligation is explained as follows: Pension benefit obligation: Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits Current employees Total pension benefit obligation Net asseL,~ Available for benefits, at cost or amortized cost Unfunded pension benefit obligation -24- 

$ 190,301,875 159_042.189 349,344,064 
318.271.74Q $ 3.1.072.324 



NOTE D - PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MARCel 31,1997 

The pension benefit obligation was determined as pan of an actuarial valmtZion as of Jtme 30, 1996. Some of the significant assumptiooS nsed in the caleulatiuns for 1996 were: (a) life expectancy of partlaipants based on The Combined Annuity Mortality Table, Co) an interest rate of 8%, (e) pmj~.d salary increases at a rate of 5.5%, and (d) the Attained Age Normal Valuation Method was used for 1996. The foregoing actuarial assumptions are based on the presumption that the System will continue. Were the Syste~l to terminate, different actuan~ a~umptions and other factors might be applicable in daterminmg the anmarial present value areal/ted projected benefits. The actuarial value of assets for Plan A txpresunts 91.t 1% of the fu~d's pension benefit obligation, The invt~mtmt comings for fiscal ytsr 1997 was $30,576,631. 
benefit obligation~ is a stmldmth2ed disclosure mensm* of the prescmt value of pension bonefitrb edjust~ for the effects of projected Salary inercasr~ as'timated to be payable in the future as a result of employee service to date. The me.tern is the acttmr~ present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to help nse~ assess the Syslem'$ funding status on a going-concern basis. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used to 6eteamine cOntribution to the System, Information concerning the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and assets available for benefits which are relevant to the City are not available becau~ such determinations arc made on a state.ode basis and not for individual participating municipalities. A~ infortuatlon for this Retiremcot System as u whole as of June 30, 1996 (the latest date of which such information is available at the dine of this report) is presented below: The 1996 unfimded pension benefit obligation is explained as follows: Pension benefit obligation: Active members Retired ~ad inactive members Total pension benefit obligation Net asset.,; available for benefil~, at CO$1 OvLaff'unded pemion bLmcf'tt obligation 

$ 312,486,870 ~60 g12,07g,530 s j27.~_~ 
]'he pension benefit obligation was determined as pan of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 1996. Significamt actuarial assumptions used include (a) "Entry Age Normal" cost method for funding re~luiremants, (b) an interest rate of 7% and, (~) projected salary increases at a rate of 2% (d) the A~tined Age Norton/Valuation Method was used for 1995. The foregoing actuarial assumptions are based on the presumption that the System will continue. Were the: System to terminate, different actuarial assumptions and other fantors might be applicable in determining the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits. The actuarial value of assets of the plan represunts 103.34% of the fund.,; pension benefit obligation. The investment earnings for fiscal year 1996 was $63,1;27,755. Trend Inform~Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due Ten year historical trend information showing both of the Systems' progress is pre~~tttod in the June 30, 1996 comprehensive armunl fmmaeia] 
NOTE E - POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS .C.,gL~ra Benefit,,;~ Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City provides health care benefits to eligible folmer employees and eligible depeodents. Certain requirernants are outlined by the federal government foe this coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured on or before the first day of the month for the astual month covered, This progntro is offered for a durmion of lg months after the: termination date. There is no associated cost to the City under this program, and them is only one participant in the program as of March 31. 1997. 



NOTE F- RISK MANAGEMENT 
CITY OF GRETNa.. ]~)UISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIdd.. STATEMENTS MARCH 31,1997 

The City had a limited risk mana~:ement program for workers compensation insurance which terminated an June 30,1996. The City hired e third party as adminisu~ol' for this pzo~mm. The City has ~ $I,032,366 to cover payments fo~ claims and bencfits through tbe termination of the plan. Total payments for claims and benef~s were $58 for the period April l, through June 30,19961 There is a ~ re~,erve in the general fund of $1,211,499. The acumfiaily computed ges~rve as of Match 31,1997 was $83,507. "i']~c City has purchased instance to cover it in the event of catastrophic lo~. As a result, the City's liability in any one year is limited to $150,000 per claim with a maximum limit of $500,000 per year. The City has ~..placed its sulf ihsm~ program with a fully insmgd pin.am effective July 1, 1996, 
LITIGATION. The City is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting from pe~onal injury and property damage, The City Attorney has reviewed these claims and law.its in ogdee to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the City and to arnve at an estimate, if any, of the arnunnt or range of potentixl loss to the City. As a result of this re~,iew, it is ihc opinion of the City Atlomey that no material liability is anticipaled or foreseeable i~ ex~s of the City's hk~u-ance coverage, In additiun, the City is involved in litigation by one of its employees z~garding a claim of ra~ial discaimination in pay and retirement benefits. The City disputes the claims made by this employee and the case is currently in litigation and no prediction as to the outcome can be m;~c. The City's liability, if any, could be up to $175,000. There has been no provision to rese~,e fund balance for this claim. 



The Gclcnd Fund is the prix,cipal ol~ra~ing fund of the C/ry of Ghana, aad is to account for the fuamcL~l n~omccs and ~xpcaditun~ no~ accounted for in any oth~" fun~L 



Cash (including cer~',ificates of deposit of $26,346) Investrne~lts Receivable (net, where applicable, of a{{owanoe~ for un~l{r~-'fib|~) Taxes Accrued int~-~t Due from other ftmds lnventoD' Prepaid expenses Restricted e.ssets Cash Investments TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
LIABILITIES Ac.oounts payable Court bonds and refundable deposits Accrued liabilities Due to other funds Une.amed revenues TOTAL LIABILITIES I~IJND BALANCE Reserved for encumbrances Reserved for inventory Undesignated TOTAL FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEI~T MARCH 31,1997 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

The accompaJlying notes are an integral p~l of this statement. -28- 

$ 303,934 147,469 
519,792 1r,6,092 0 1,053,812 7,05 I 0 137,673 - 1,211,499 $. 3,537,322 

$ 336,034 42,834 1,091,982 136.648 - 202,920 - 1,810,4{8 45,949 7,05 I 1,673,904 --. 1,726,904 



$ 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE ~ JN'FAVORABI .El 245,,267 $8,105 190,..~0 14,092 33,944 1,6,4~ 671,674 
0 0 6"/1,674 
(t.453) (180.405) I $7~7~ t3,693 0 19.413 
0 



Non-Business Building TOTAL LICENSES AND PERM ITS "AL State giant State tobaco3 tax 911 fees Federal grant Beer tax State video ~,oker TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENI"AL $ 

(Continued) 

,, 19,146 776,~_~5 
16,099 83,885 46320 258,774 68397 

o 19~146. 20,000 (854) 0 
16,099 s3,ss5 46320 258,774 68397 ., 574)20__3 0 574,203 110471678 $ 0 $ 110471678 $ 
10,000 M,O00 38,178 ~5,000 55,000 

6,099 (115) 8,142 13,774 13,397 425,000 149203 ,, 8571178 $ 19~1500 

-30- 



CHARGF~; FOR SERVICES lnspectio;n fees Eleclri,-.al Plumbing Resubdivision fee; Parking nneter C, re~ cu~ing fees Other TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICF.S FINES ANti FORFEITURES Fines Courl cost TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES 
MISCELLANEOUS lnwrcst on invvsted funds Rents Insurance loss fund reruns Property sc~lzurcs Other TOTAL. MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL REVENUES OTHERFINANCINGSOURCES Ope~tmgtrans~ TOTALOTHER ~NANCING SOURCES TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

30O,699 33,245__ 
I 13,334 612 37,759 77,388 81273 310,366 
0 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND ~EVENUES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 
ADJUSTMENT TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE []~OTE A~ BUDGETAR~ BUDGET (UNFAVORA RI .I~ 

0 $ 6,920 0 10,2S8 0 3,08O 0 70,975 0 7,064 0 21Tll95- 
$ 8,500 $ (I,580) 8,000 2.258 1,500 1,580 65,00O 5,975 7,I00 06) l~ooo ~5 0 120,19'2_ . 106~100 14,092 

0 0 0 

0 

300,699 260,000 40,699 33,245 . 40v000 {6f755) 
113,334 612 37,759 77,388 sl,273. 31o,366_ 
100,000 6OO 10,000 77,000 23,000 210,600 

13.334 12 27,759 388 5L273 99.766 __ 0 7,149,352 .6,477v678 671,674 0 0 0 0 0.. 0 $7.149.3~ffi $ ~ $ 7.149.3"52,~ $~.477.678 $ 671.674 

"lhe accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 



GENERAL GOVERNMF_JCr Personnel ~xpenses Supplies Service charges Capital o~ay TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT PUBLIC SAFETY Personnel expenses Supplies Se~ic~ cluul~ Capital outlay TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 
PUBLIC WOlgKS Personnel ~):perlses Supplies Service charges Capital outltly TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 
MISCELLANEOUS Personnel ~xpelLU~ Supplits Service char~cs Capital OUtlay TOTAL 
DEBT SERVICE Principal retirement Interest in borrowed funds TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 
TOTAL EXPENDITUI~S OTHER FINANCING USES Operating [ra'ts fers out TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA ~ GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF EXP[~I)FrURF, S-BUDGET AND ACTUAl., YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

$ 673,209 $ 74,497 346,239 25,708 1, I 19,653 
2,673,349 211,810 1,202,069 230,942 4t318,170 

23,413 1,087 67.832 0 92,332 
0 0 0 
110,332 110,332 

AIIJUSTMI~/" TO BUDGETARY BASIS t~LOIZA~ 0 0 (11,651) 0 
$ 673.209 74,497 334,588 25v708 

$ 688,729 $ 69,OOO 328,820 20t000 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE fUNFAVOR4 BI .IK~ ] 5.520 (5,497) 

J I 1,65~ 1,108T002 .1,106r$49 (ir453) 

0 C2,900) 40,000 0 _.37aoo 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 

2,673,349 211,810 1.203,641 230,942 4v319,742 
786,058 125,788 435,478 125,648 1,472,972 
23,413 1,087 67,832 0 92,332 

915.200 116,650 502,400 126T300 IT660,550 
22,105 1,700 82.220 0 1o6,o25 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

15.516 (35,96o) (Zlt2.0sg) 22,055 (150,405) 
29.142 (9,138) 66.922 652 IgTtS7$ 
(1.308) 613 14.358 0 13f693 
0 0 0 2~7 02.~L 6,993,048 7.012,461 19,413 
0 

TOTAL EKPEND~ES AND OTHER FINAN(~NG USES 7.076.359 $ .._27.02=.L $ 7.103.380 $ 7.122.793 $ 19~4]~ 

The accompanyir~g notes are an integral part oflhis stelemenL -32- 



CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA GENEI~.L FUND STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAl, 

EXPENDITURF.,S Personnel expenses Supplie; Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses Supplie~; Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL 

EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

(Continued) 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTION YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

$ 180,690 $ 25,217 168,653 25t708 $ 400,268 $ 

AND ACTUAL 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ~.]'E A,~ ~  BUDGET 05 0 349 0 
! 80,690 I; 25,217 n69,002 185,176 $ 28,900 169,320 25T708 20;000 4001617 $ 403.3965 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE 
4,486 3,683 318 

$ 56,331 $ 405 10,036 0 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ~o~F.~ BUDGETARY 05 0 0 o 
56,331 $ 405 10,036 0 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE 
58,733 $ 200 5,000 o 

2,402 (205) (5,036) 0 $ 66.772 $ 0 $66.7725 63.933 $ (2.839) 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ACTUAL (N 0.~.~,~ BUDGETARY BUDGET VARIANCE FAVORABLE 
$ 05 0$ 05 05 0 0 0 0 0 0 64,837 0 64,837 65,000 163 0 0 0 0 0 $ 64 837 $ 0 $ 641837 $ 65.0005 163 
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(Continued) -34- 



 



CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND 

EXPENDITURES Personnq.-I ~~pemes Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Personnel expensfs Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital oatlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

(Continued) 

$ 

PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTION YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

209~02 $ 6,845 50,858 0 $ 266.905 $ 

AND ACTUAL (CONT~D) 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ~]~L~F..K~ BUDGETARY BUDGET 0S 0 0 209.2~ S 6,845 5O,858 219,344 $ 12,350 54,550 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE 
10,142 5,505 3,~2 0 0 0 0 

ACTUAL $ 2,356,627 $ 203,925 1,140.~17 230,942 

crrY I~)LICE 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ~-~t ~ BUDGETARY BIJIM~ET 05 0 1,572 0 

2356,627 $ 2,362,008 $ 203,925 161,000 1,141,889 954,002 230r942 253,000 3.933.383 $ ~$ 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE 
5,381 (42,925) (187,887) 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ACTUAL ~ITF...~ $ 107,520 $ 1,040 10,894 0 
05 0 0 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGETARy BUDGET 107,520 $ 1,040 10,894 107,583 $ 2,500 13,000 63 1,460 2,106 0 0 0 0 
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CITY OF GRE2~qA, LOUISIANA GENERAl, FUND STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAL 

Personntd ~pen.~ Supplies Service charges CapitaJ outlay TOIAL EXPENDITURES 

EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL 

EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital o:Jttay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

(Continued) 

PUBLIC WORI~LS FUNCTION YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1997 

ACTUAL $ 05 0 27,368 0 $ 27.368 $ 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS 
05 0 0 0 

AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

BUDGETARY BUDGET 05 0$ 0 0 27,368 25,000 0 27.368 $ 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) 0 0 (2,368) 0 

$ 32~885 $ 96,759 252~15 8~664 $ 7~11723 S 

ADJUSTMENT TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE ~t O_'ff,. &.~ Bmmg'rARv nua~r 05 (2,9OO) 40,000 32~885 $ 93,859 292,415 417,400 $ 86,200 332,500 87,515 (7,659) 40,085 
DRAINAGE 
ADJUSTME:WF TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE ACTUAL {~[Q~.~) BUDGETARY BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE~ $ 318,862 $ 20,398 8~337 22,851 $ ~9.448 $ 

05 0 0 0 
318,8625 20,398 87,337 355,6005 18,950 107,300 22r851 25,500 449448 $ 507 350 $ 

36,738 0,448) 19,963 2,649 

-38- 



CF~Y OF GP.~,~ IJDUISI~.I~L~ GENFJ~L FUND STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAL PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION YIgAR ENDED blARCil 31,1997 
PAIUgWAY 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGL'TARY BASIS EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses $ 137.311 $ Supplie~ I 1,53 ] Service charges 28,358 Capital outlay 20rl33. TOTAL EXPENDITUBJgS $ 197.333 $ 

EXPENDITURES Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

(Continued) 

0$ 0 0 D7,311 n.531 28,358 $ 14~.oo $ I 1,500 0 20,133 
TOTAL.-PUBLIC WORKS FUNCTION 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGE"]'ARY BASIS ACTUAL rNOXE.A~ $ 786,058 $ 128,688 395,478 125,648 $ 1.435.872 $ 

0$ (2,900) 40,000 0 

37,600 20t000 2111300 $ 

78~058 $ 125.788 435,478 125,648 
915,200 $ 116.650 502,400 126r300 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE~ 4,n9 Ol) 9.242 033) ,, 1:~,%7 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE ~JNFAVORABLE) 129,142 (9,138) 66,922 652 
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CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA GENERAL FUND 

EXPENDr'~URES Parsonnel expe~.ses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL 

EXPENDFFURES Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capita] outlay TOTAL 

EXPENDI'I URES Personne[ expenses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

MISCELLANEOUS FUNCTION YEAR ENDED'MARCH 31,1997 
TOURISM 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS 

$ 23A!3 $ 1,087 30,619 0 
05 0 0 0 
23,413 $ 1,087 30,619 22,105 $ 1,700 39,500 0 0 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABLE) (t,30S) 613 8,881 0 $ 5~119 $ ~ . 0 $ 55.119 $ 631305 $ 8,186 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS AC'TUAL IJ~IY.A,5) VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGETARY BUDGET fl.rNFAVORABLEI $ 05 05 05 05 0 0 0 0 0 0 37,213 0 37,213 42,720 5,507 0 0 0 0 0 $ 37121~ $ 0 $ ~7,213 $ 42.720 $ ~507 
ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ACTUAL ~[O..'~ ~.A~.~ 

FUNCTION 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE BUDGETARY BUDGET ~[1NIcAVORABLEt $ 23,413 $ 0 $ 23,413 $ 22,105 $ (1,308) 1,087 0 1,087 1,700 613 67,832 0 67,832 82,220 t4,388 0 0 0 0 0 $ 92 332 $ 05 92.3~2 $ 106,025 $ 13,693 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of[his statement. -40- 



The Fire Pn)tectiun Fund is to account for the proceeds of ad valo~ redes, which are spenifically dedicati~d for the pmcJl&~ and maintz~umce of fire fighting equipment, payment of salaries for fire department dtanffem's, and for COntractual ar='ange=r=e=lts for fire protection with volunt~r fi~'e departments. The Garbasc Fund is to account for the proceeds of garbage pickup s~cvic~ chorSes which are specifically dedicated for providing and maintaining garbage collection and disposal services. . . ,, ~ . - 
are to bc dedicated annunlly to venous city funds by uctiun of the City Cotmb'iL . The Social $;~~rvices for the Aged Fund ~ to account for the prooeeds ofad vadore~ ~axes which are specifically dedicated for services for the elderly~ The Recrent~on Fund is to account for the proceeds of ad valorem taxes which ~ specifically dedicated for mainte~anen and op~ations of recreational facilities. The Street Light Improvement Fund is to account for the proceeds ofnd valore:m taxes which are specifically dedicated for the mainteaumen and operation of strent lights. The Ambulauce Fund is to account for the prooends ofad valorem taxes which are sl0ccifically dedicated for mnbulanen and emergency rescue services. 

-41- 



ASSETS 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUEFUNDS " COMBINING BAL,ANCE SHEET MARCH 31,1997 
FIRE PROTEC310.~ GARBAGE TAX RIVERBOAT CASINO 

Cash $ ,. ( . $ " ~ 0 $ 523 709 -- 
of aih>wance for uncollecfibles) Ad vaiorem taxes 83,187 0 0 Other 0 17,472 56.024 Prepaid expenses 0 0 0 Inventory 0 0 0 Due frora other funds 52~0(~0 410 119r520 TOTAL ASSETS $- 135.18~. S 118.670 $ 1,075.890 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities Accounu payable Due to other funds TOTAL L1ABILUI'IES 
Fund balance Reserved for prepaid expenses Reserved for encumbrances Undesignated TOTAL FUND BALANCE 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

25,084 45,759 _.....,..~.~3 
0 10.017 _ 54,327_ __ 64~4 

$ 43.354 82,714 12~,968 
0 0 (7r398) (7~398) 

0 1,027,816 1,027.816 
0 0 48t074 48,074 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement. 



 

SOCIAL SERVICES FOR THE AGED 
29,178 $ 0 
1,353 477 0 0 4z547" s ~ 35.555 

$ 750 0 750 
0 9,000 25,805 34,805 

26,353 0 
29,788 0 0 0 11776 $ . 571917 

STREET LIGHT I[~'ROVEMENT 
137,041 0 
33,086 0 0 0 0 

0 0 
34~61 0 0 0 0 

15,474 $ 0 $ 4,556 - 20~132 _ 35~606 
0 126 22,185 22,311 

0 0 
0 0 170rl27 1707127 

210~66 255.L22 
0 32 (150,793) (18076m~ 

TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 
716,281 477A25 
181,775 73~73 0 0 . 178253. $ 11627t7Q7 

89,218 1,386t987 11476~205 
0 19,175 132227. 151)502 
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RIVERBOAT CASINO 
$ 0 1,1 "T2,702 0 54,640 0 1,227,342 

0 

1.695.000 1,695,_.~_~ 
(467,658) 
515.732 



 

SOCIAL SERVICES FOR THE AGED 30,388 $ 0 5,203 
STREET LIGHT 
241,211 $ 0 0 0 

241,211 $ 0 109,537 0 
TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY1 1,447,895 1,218,179 495.848 56.498 363 9,790 0 0 201202 35,954 281,388 241,211 350,748 3,238,622 

0 0 0 0 162,332 ___, 35,954 281~38~8 241T211 __. 350t748 3,400,954 
9,988 1,329 3,843 0 15,160 

82,299 56,312 101,463 8~509 248,583 
0 0 

0 0 199,827 0 199,827 
0 

352,655 49,074 56,632 67t913 526~74 
0 

444,942 129,209 1,691,661 101,241 2,367,053 
1.695.000 151160 -- 248,58.3 , , 199,827 --. 526,274 4,062~053_ 

20,794 32,805 41,384 (175,526) (661,099) 
14.011 ( 10~49_4.} . 128,743 $ 2..~231/ $ 170,127 

-45- 

--. (5,235) 812,001 $~.~ $, 151~502 



 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS-FIRE PROTECTION FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

REVENUES Taxes Ad valoi~-n tax I ntergovenunen~d Fire irrmran~ tax MiscellarteOtL~ Interest on invested fimds Other income TOTAL REVENUES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating U'ansfers it, TOTAL REVENUES AND OTtlER FINANCING SOURCF~S 
EXPENDI1TIRES Public safety Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAl., EXPENDITlYRES 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ACTUAL ~NOTE A.q) $ 663.487 $ 45,477 0 0 708.964 
OS 0 663,487 $ 661,000 $ 45,477 40,000 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UN]FAVORAIgI.~ ~ 
2,487 5.477 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 708,964 701,000 7,964 

0 0 
0 0 (73,993) 0 

, 52,00tL 52,000 760,964 . 753,000 
0 0 739,162 24)819 763,9sL 
0 0 736,000 25,000 761,000 

0 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDFFURES AND OTItER USES (77,000) 73,983 (3,017) $, (8,000) $ 4~9~ FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 141)344_ (84,000) 57,344.. $ 64,344 $ ~-- (I 0.017) $, ~,,~1~27 

The accompanying notes arc an integral pan of this statement. 



REVENUES Charges for servic~ Miscellaneous Interest on invested funds Other income TOTAL REVENUEB 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS-GARBAGE FUND STATEMENT OF REVE~.TE, S, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGI~ AND ACTUAL YEAR ]E2~IDED MARCH 31,1997 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCI~ Operating uans fcrs in TOTAl. REVENI.TE, S AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
EXPENDITURES Public work:~ Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

ADJUSTMENT BUDGETARY BASIS AC~r'UAL 0~[.O.1X.A~ $ 381,108 $ 1,858 10~049. 393,015 
I 10,332. 503~347. 
0 22,494 516~751. 539,245 

05 0 0 0 
0 0 
0 0 0 0 

BUDGETARY 381,108 $ 390,000 $ 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UN]FAVORABLF0 (8,892) 1,858 500 1,355 10,049_ 12,000 (I,951) 393,015 402,500 (9,485) 
0 .,, 503r347., 512T832 , (9,485) 

0 22,494 516t751. 539,245. 
0 (7,494) ~ (14,890) (~js4) EXCESS (DE.FICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDFI'URES AND OTHER USES (35,898) 0 (35,898) $ (4.029) $ (31.8691 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 28,500 0 28,500 $ {7,391~) $ 0 $ (7.398) 

Tile accompanying notes are a,n integral part of this statement. .47- 



 



REVENU~5 Taxes Ad valc,rem tax Charges fl)r scrvic~ User charges Misccllancotts 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS-SOCIAL SERVICES FOR THE AGED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND1TUFO~, AND L-'HANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

Interest on invested fttods Other TOTAl, REVENUF, S OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating u'ansfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Cultural & recreation Persormel cxpertses Supplies Service chnrges Capita] outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

AI)JUgI'MENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS ACTUAt. It~El~.Af~ $ 30,388 $ 5,203 0 363 35,954 
05 0 
BUDGETARY RIIDt'~ET 
30,388 $ 30,100 $ 5,203 4,8OO 0 0 0 0 363 0 35,954 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE fUNFAVORARI .IqI 
288 403 0 363 1,054 

0 0 0 35t954 . 34,900 . 1~054 
9,988 1,329 3,843 0 15t160 

0 0 9,000 9,988 1,329 12,843 0 0 -- 9,000 24,160 
17,908 1,500 13,700 7,920 171 85~ 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTflI~R SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 20,794 (9,000) 11,794 $ .,-- 1.792 $ 10.002 FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 14,011 0 14~011 $ 34.805 $ (9.0OOl $ 25.805 

The accompanying notes are az* integral part of this statement -49- 



REVENUES 3"~xes Ad vall~rem lax Miscellaneous Interest on invited funds Other TOTAL REVENUI~ 

crrY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA SPECIAL REVENUE F[~qDS-RECREATION FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL YI~LR ENDF, D MARCH 31,1997 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Cultural and rgcreatiob Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Cepilal outlay TOTAl, EXPENDITURES 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 

ADJ US'~NT TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE ACTUAl, ~0 TF,.~ B~ETARY B UIN~. ET [UNFAVOIZt Rl .g) $ 271.598 $ 0 9,790 281.388 
0 281,388 
82,299 56,312 101,463 8r509 248,583 

SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 32.805 
FUND BAIJ,NCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR , (10,494) $ 22.311 $ 

0 $ 271,598 $ 271,500 $ 98 0 0 0 0 0 9,790 281,388 ,s~oo 287,000 
0 

0 (5,710) (5,612) 
0 0 28L388 287,000 (5,612) 

0 (9.110) 0 0 
82.299 47,2O2 101.463 102,800 50.000 I 13,200 20~SOI 2,?98 ] 1.737 , 8,509 21,000 12,491 239f473 i, 287T000 47~527 

9,110 
9,236 (19,73o) 22.185 

"lhc accompanying notes are lut integral part of this statement. -50- 



l~e accompanying notes are a~ integral pan of this statement, 



REVENUES Taxes Ad valorem tax Charges for services User charges Miscelle.neous Imcrc~ on invcstcd funds Other TOTAL REVENUES 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS-AMBULANCE ]FUND STA'I'F_,MENT OF REVENUES, E.XP~NDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,199"/ 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating transfers in TOTAl. REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
EXPENDITURES Public safeo Personnel expenses Supplies Service charges Capital outlay TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

ADJIISWMENT TO BUDGWIARY BASIS ACTUAL RtOXF.,.A~ 
$ 241,211 $ 109,537 0 0 350,748 
0 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND O'ITIER SOURCES OVER ]~XPENDFI'URES AND OYI-IER USES (175.526) FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR (5~5) $, (I80,76~s 

05 0 0 0 0 
241,211 $ 242,000 $ 109,537 150,000 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE t'UNFAVOI~Rt .~j 
(789) (40,463) 0 0 0 0 0 0 350,74~ 392,000 (41,252) 

0 0 0 0 0 350,748 3921000 (41~52) 
0 84 133 --. .(67,913) __ (67,696) 
67.696 
67.728 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of this statement. -52- 

352,655 49,158 56,765 0, 458,578 
365.776 41,500 47,500 0 

13,121 (7,658) (9,265) 0 ... 454~776 (3,$02} 

(72,963) $ (180.793~ 



The 1:~1~ ~i~ Fund is to accu;nuln~ momes for the payment (,f l.'inc;~ ~ amd fiscal du~ on ~e City of Gn:ma's oblig~on and I~-venuc bonds. 

-53- 



"I~e accompaJlying notes are an integral part of this statement. -54- 



REVENUES Taxes Sales Miscellaneous Other TOTAL REVENUES 

CITY OF GI~JETNA. LOUISIANA DEBT SERVICE FUND-19~ SALES TAX BONDS 1993 SALES 'lAX REFINANCING BONDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPF-NDITURF~, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCF-.$ Operating transf~ in TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Debt service Principa] retirement Interest and paying agent fees TOTAL EXPENDITURES OTHER FINANCING USES Operating transfers oul TOTAl. OTHER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES; EXCESS (DF, FIC|ENCY) OF REVENUI~ AND OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 

&CIIJAL 
$ 676,367 $ 52,051 0 728,448 
o 

ADJUSTMENT TO VARIANCE BUDGETARY BASIS FAVORABLE ~OTE A~ BUDCETARV. BUDGET (I~NFAVORAI~I .~ 05 0 0 0 52,~! 0 ?28,448 41,000 0 717~56 
o o o 

I 1,0~l 0 ,092 
0 __ 0 ?28,448._ 717~356 . 11,092 

345.000 0 ~ 322rS03 0 667,503 0 
0 
667,503_ 

0 
0 
0 

345.000 345.000 0 322~0"t . 324,$02 2,299 667,503 669,802 2,299 
0 0 0 

~ 1 ~2g 1r023 .. L2g 1,023.. $ I 341 968=$ Q,$ , Ii3411968 

"lhc accompanying notcs ar~ an integral part of this statement. -55- 



 



ASSETS 
Current meu Cash Investments Sales tax-reneivable Receivable-other Due f~m oth~ fuadJ TOTAL CX~J~ENT AS~E'I~ 
Restricted usets Revenue bond fund Cash Inves~ncTlt$ Accrued revenues TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 
TOTAL ASSETS 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 
Liabilities Contracts payable Retainages payable Due to other funds TOTAL I,IAIBI]JTIF_.S 
Fund balance Designated for subsequent year expenditures Reserved for encumbrances Unreserved Undesignated TOTAL FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA CAPITAL PRO3F, CTS BALANCE SHEET MARC'H 31,1997 

TOTAl. LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

"1 he accompanying notes are an integral pan of this stattment. -57- 

$ 114,346 522,361 70,122 12,858 "nny2t 1.502,6os 
271,966 0 0 271,966 

$ 742,518 24,982 84t922 852~422 



REVENUF~ Taxes Sales tax I nte~ovemmenta] Jefferson l~trish Council Parish ro,ul tax Community Devc~ ~OliliOn Fees Miscellam~us l~erc~ TOTAl, REVENUES 

crrY OF GREINA, LOUISIANA CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND ~CE BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31.1997 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES Operating tren~en in TOTAl, REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES EXPENDITURES Public wor~ TOTAL EXPEND~ OTHER FINANCING USE~q Operating Iransfers out TOTAL EXPENDrFUF~S A~lD OTHER FINANCING USF~~~ 
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES: OVER E.XPENDrI'URES AND OTHER USES 
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF yEAR AT END OF YEAR 

AD~STME~T TO BUDGETARY BASIS AL'YI~UAL $ 1,115,540 $ 0 I ?6,368 ISt.g24 1422 
RUDGETARY J~.[J~GIET 0 $ 1,115,540 $ 1,0.25,000 $ 0 0 0 0 176.368 173,000 0 151~24 143,000 0 8.422 0 

VARIANCE FAVORABi~ t~fNFA VO ICf.ARI JEA 90,.~40 0 3,368 a.924 s,4aa 33,097 0 -- , 33,097 ~  5,097 1,485.351 0 1,485.351 1,369,000 116,351 
o j.443.o~o , L443.0oo o 
24__7.,..~.~ 3,69o3s3 43~.275 , 687,922 247,806 3,690,353 4,378,2"/5 687.922 0 0 0 0 

(:~47,866) 
],436,2sg __~_.L~57 63~D t.tTs.655 S 922.152 $ -- , .,,~(~.499~$ 416.653 

The accompanying notes are an integl~ part of this statement .58- 
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LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities Current liabilities Coayablc from cun'ent assets) Accoisnts payable AccruP.,d ~xJ~ns~ Due t,o other funds TOTAL CURRENT LIABILrrlES (PAYABLE FROM CURRENT ASSETS) 
Current liltbilitles Deposits payable TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIF, S (PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS) 
Long-term liabilities Compcn~mtcd absences TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 
Fund equity Contribul:cd capital 
Retained el*rnings Reserved for plant replacement and cxtension Unrcservcd TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS TOTAL FUND EQUITY TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

MUNICIPAL WATERWORKS SYSTEM MUIqCIPAL SEWER SYSTEM 

96,559 S 93,238 88 621,004 250 --, 152,757 

TO'IAL (MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

189.797 338 773.761 ~ 717~651 --., 246,245 963,8% 
,,, 201,470 201,470 
67,439 67.439 

0 0 
92,513 92,513 

201,470 201,470 
159~952 159.952 
1,325,318 

5r920T532 8,553, I 17 14a473,649 
0 . (2,426.828) 18,863 _....(2~754,590) 18,863 (STISlt41g) - (2,426,828) ..__(?.,735,727) (5,162,555) -. 3~493,704 __5~817,390 9,3l 1,094 $ . 414801264 $ ..._61156TI48 10.636.412 
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CITy OF GRETNA. LOUISIANA ENT~RPRISE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES, AND (:~IANGE$ IN RETAINED EARNINGS YEAR ENDFJ) MARCH 31.1997 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for servi~s Miscellaneous TOTAl. OPERATING REVE;NUES 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personnel expense Operating !;upplies and pulchases Building lu)d maintenance ~Xpel~.'S Outside sewic~ TransportalJon G'encral expenses Depreciation TOTAL OPERATING F.~PENSES OPERA'IING INCOME (LOSS) 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (I'7,XPENSES) Ad valorcm taxes Interest on invested funds NET NON-OPERATING R EVENUF.S (EXPENSES) NET INCOME (LOSS) RETAINED ]E~t.RNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF VEAl( 

MUNICIPAL WATERWORIC~ ,'fi'STEM 
$ 1,235,171 59,931 1.295.102 
724,766 80.1t43 ~ 164,435 28,322 15,695 125.251 24o,465 1,379,777 

MUNICIPAL SEWER 8]CSIF.J~ 
_ 2Ar813 1,365,799 
T20,988 80.979 155,443 131,957 19,912 13!;,321 3164_A2~2~ 1,561.027 

0 -- 141477 -- 14~477 (7o,198) ..~56,630) $ ~m..(2.426.828i 

The accompanying notes ~ an integra~ part oft] is statement -62- 

265,897 3,29o 2~js7 

TOTAL (MEMORANDUM ONLV~ 
2,576,157 84,7,14 2,660.901 
1,445,754 161.822 319.878 160.279 35,607 260,572 556,892 2,940,804 (279,903) 
265.g97 ~ ] 7v767 3.76 
(5,166,316) (5.162.5~51 



 CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA ENTERPIOSE FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS yF, AR ENDED MARCt131,1997 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Net incorQe (loss) for the y~ltr Adjusiznents 1o reconcile net income to i~l~t cash provided by opexaling activities D,:p~eciation (lncreass) decrease in mule accounts ~iYablc increase (d~rcuc) in Iccom~ payable Increase (dec~xsc) in Iccreed expenses ~crease (decline) in ctmom~1 deposi~ Increase (decrease) in a~:l compensated absences NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPE, RATIONS CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchases of property and equipment PurchaSe of investments 

MUNICIPAL WATERWORKS Sy.KCF.~ (7o,19l) 240,465 (9,SOO) (147,161) (6,214) 3,475 j~s0 .15 1~_2_ 
(ieo3i6) ..~o3_333333~ 

MUNICIPAL SEWER sYs'r~.~r, $ 73.959 316,427 (20.OlU) 7.91i6 (S,21S) 0 6,~.z 379,$913_ 
(531,716) ... 1215,57]Q 

TOTAL (MEMOR.A~ DUM ONLVJ 3.76 
556.892 (29Jli3) 039.875) (II.432) 3.475 12,1T2 395~ I IO 
(792,432) (419,i63) NET (:ASH USED BY INVI,.'STING ACrlVlTE~ (4~.~3021 ____..(~3) (I,2l 1,595) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Repayment of loans from other fimds Loans from ogler fun~s Contributed capital NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING 

NETINCREASE(DECREASE)iN CASH CAStl AT BEGINNING OF YEAR CASII AT END OF YEAR 

The accompanying notes ace an integral part of this statement. 

U'8,631) 466,187 ___73,4.29_o ~. 4t'~.z.97.._~.6. 
J Ls'2..L 6__9,z24 _tt.,.ql_5 

186,8M- 0 2oo,ooo_ 386~814,. 
19~414 90,921 $ I lOr3~t~ 

108,183 466,1 g'~ 273,4,?o ,b1"/,790 
31,3o5 i6o,~s _ 191.350 



STATEMENT OF CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS-MUNCIPAL WATERWORKS SYSTEM FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS-BU YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges f~r services Water service charges Installation fees Reiustallatlon fees Sprinkler charges Penalty charges TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES Miscellaneous TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personnel expense Operating supplies and purchases Building and mainteoartce expenses Outside service Transpon:ation General expenses Dcpreciation TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
OPERATING INCOME fLOSS) 
NON-OPERATING REVENUI'S (EXPENSES) Interest on invested funds NET NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 

1,235,171 3,605 29,208 845 23r248 1,292.077 ____ 3t025 _ 1,295,102 
724,766 80,843 164,435 28,322 15,695 125,251 ___ 240~465 _._LL79~777 

$ 1,220,000 S,000 5,000 1,000 3O,000 1,264,000 2,500 1~ss,5oo 
728,600 71,350 150,450 27,250 15,025 105,450 , 205,000 11303,125 

AND ACTUAL 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE t'UI~cAVORA RLE) 
15,171 (4,39'$) 24,208 (155) 
28,077 525 _, 28r602 
3,834 (9,493) (13,985) (I,072) (670) (19,8Ol) 05~465) ~ (76.652) 

~4,477 &4 4.dT_L77 7,000 7,000 ~ 71477 ~ 7~477 NET INCOME (LOSS) __._....(7_.0 I 9~.~ $ (29,625) $ (40,573) RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR s _.~. 426~ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statemenL -64- 



 
Cn'Y OF GRE'I'NA. LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS-MUNCIPAL WATERWORKS SYSTEM FUND STATi~MF2~ OF DEPARTMENTAL oPFAIATING EXPF_,NSF.,S-BUII~ET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

FRODUCI'ION Personnel expense Operating supplies and purehttses Building and maintnnm~ee expense Outside services Transpoztatian General expense TOTAL PRODUCflON 
I)ISTR1BETION Personnel expense Operaling suppli~ anti pm~ Building and maintenance expctlse Outside s.*~iees Transportation General expense TOTAL DISTRIBLrrlON 
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE Personnel expert~ Operating supplies and p~ Building and maintenance expense: Outside services Transportation General expense TOTAl, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
DEPRECIATION 
TOTAL Personnel expense Operating supplies and purchases Building and maintenance expense Outside services Transporlalion General expense Deprecialion TOTAL 

"l~e accompanying notes arc an inteb~d part of this statement, 

ACTUAL $ 360.516 44,016 162,759 21,072 954 $ _ 62010 651.657 
$ 208,383 29,553 0 0 9,532 ~ 27~498 $ .d74 9~6 
$ 155,867 7,274 1,646 7,250 5,2O9 __.35,443 

FAVORABLE BUDGET (UNFAVORABLE~ $ 359,600 $ OI6) 40,200 O,816) 148,400 20,000 1,900 44,850 $ 614.950 
(14,389) (i,o72) 946 (17,460) $ - t36.~o'n 

$ 205,9OO $ 22,0O0 350 0 9,O5O 26,500 $ 263.800 
(2,483) (7,553) 35O 0 (482) (998) $ __ (11.166) 

$ 163,100 $ ~150 1,700 7,250 4,075 .. 34,100 s~ 

7,233 1,876 54 0 0,134) (I,343) $ 6.686 
$ 724,766 80,843 164,435 28,322 15,695 125,251 s t.~9.777 

$ 728,600 $ 71,350 150,450 27,250 15,025 105,450 205r000 $ 1130~1125 

3,834 (9A93) (13,985) (I,072) (670) 09,g01) _ (35,465) $ (76.652~ 



STATEMENT OF CITY OF GRI,'TNA, LOUISIANA ENTERPRISE FUNDS-MUNC1PAL SEWER SYSTEM FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN RETAINED F_.ARNIN G~ YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

OPERATING REVENUES Charges for services Sewerage service charges Pcn~ty charg~ Sewera~:e availability fees Miscellaneous TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personnel expense Operating supplies and purch;~es Building and maintenance expenses Outside ~;ervice Transportation General oxpenses Depreciation TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Ad valorc:m taxes Interest on invested funds NET NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
NET INCOME (LOSS) 
RETAINED EARNINGS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR AT END OF YEAR 

1he accompar,ying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

1.340,986 21,779 3,034 0 --- 1,365,799 
720,988 80,979 155,443 131,957 19,912 135,321 316~427 __1,561,027 

$ 1200,500 25,000 I 0,OO0 IOO 1r33516OO 
711,600 86,400 158,000 117,500 20,750 126,050 29O,000 1~510,3OO 

AND ACTUAL 
VARIANCE FAVORABLE (UNFAVORABL~ 
4O,486 0,221) (6,966) (1oo) .. 301199 
(9,388) 5.421 2.557 (14,4571 838 (9,2711 (26,427) (50,727) 

265,897 3r290 264,600 5OO 1,297 21790 269~187 265,100 - 4T087 73,959 $ 90400 $[ (16.4411 
_ (2~g09~686) 



 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS-MUNCIPAL SEWER SYSTEM FUND STATEMENT OF DEPARTMENTAL OPERATING EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,1997 

TREATMENT Pctsonnl.~l expense Operating supplies and purchases Building and maintenm~ce expon~ Outside services Transpol~ation General expense TOTAL TRF~ 
COLLECTION Personnel expense Operating supplies and purchases Building and maintenance expense Outside services Transportation General expense TOTAL COLLECTION 
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE Personnel expense Operatin8 supplies and purchases Building and maintenance expen~ Outside services Transposition Genera] expense TOTAl., GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
DEPRECIATION 
TOTAL Personnel expense Operating supplies and purchases Building arid maintenance expense Outside services Transportation General expense Depreciation TOTAL. 

ACTUAL $ 302,936 69,473 153,846 126,964 6,753 __69338 $. 728.310 
$ 291,653 5,037 1,597 493 8,297 __.26~956 s _2~4,o~ 
$ 126,399 6,469 0 4,500 4,862 _Ao,o27 S: _~2~257 

BUDGET $ 308,900 $ 68,20O 156,750 113,000 6,500 70~00 
s 274,5oo 12,300 750 0 10,000 31,450 $ 329.200 

VARIANCE FAVORABLE /UNFAVORAI~LE~ 5,964 (1,2731 2,9O4 (13,964) (253) 21162 $ (4.460~ 
117,153) 7,463 (s47) (493) 1,703 4,494 $ (4.833} 

$ 128200 $ $300 500 4,500 4"250 24,100 $ 167r250 
1,801 (769) 5OO 0 (6121 115,9271 s 115.~71 

$ 7211,988 8(I,979 155,443 131,957 19,912 135,321 ._-'~ 1__6 42~_L S JL~ ,027 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement, -6% 

$ 711,600 $ 86,400 158,000 117,500 20,750 126,050 29o,00o s L5~.3~ 
(9,388) 5,421 2,557 (14,457) 838 (9"271) (26r427) $ (50.727) 



 



 



 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ANALYSIS OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS-| YEAR ENDED MARCH 3L 1997 
MUNICIPAL WATERWORKS 
METER DEPOSrT EI~P. 

CASH AND CERTIFICA'I$ OF DEPOSIT AT BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 241,704 RECErPTS Customer deposits, net ]nve~c:nt Interest 
DISBURSEMENTS Customer deposits, net 
CASH A ND CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT AT Y~;AR END 

40,825 12.t~. 249.6~[~ 

MUNICIPAL SEWER REPLACEJV/ENT AND EXTENSION 
$ 18,086 
0 ~.777 

__.0 



 

ACCOUNT GROUP The General " Trust Fund. Fixed Assets Account Group Is to account for fixed assets not used in proprle~ary fund operationsor a~otmted for in the 



 
CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS - l N SOURCES MARCH .31,1997 

GENERAl, FIXED ASSETS Land $ 91.317 Building!; 713,522 Improvements other thwn buildings 22,125,694 Furniture, fmtures and vquipmeat 1,937,113 Vehicles and road manhinmy 3.267,242 Construe~:ion in progress 16393,567 TOTAL GENERAl. FIXED ASSETS $, 2~91528~455 INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS FROM General fund revenues 4,672,269 Other funds 22,759,466 Federal g:ran~ 1,640,015 State grants 371.704 Gifts 85,001 TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS $ 29,528.455 

The aecompa:~ying notes are an integral part of this statement. -71- 



The Gcxzcral Long-Tcun Debt Accozmt Group is to account for the City's ,mm~,m~d general long-tam debt. 
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Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAL AC:COUNTING CORPORATION 94 Wnstbank Exp~y .. Sa itt B, Gretna, Louisiana INDEPENDENT AuDrrORS ]REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTrURE BASED ON AUDIT OF GENERAL PURIN)SE OR ]BASIC FINANU-'IA~ STATEMENTS PERF~RME IN ACCORDANC]g WITH GOVFAtNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
Honorable Mayor ned Members of the City Council of the City of Gretna, Louisiama 
We have audited the geneTal purpose fmmtcisi statements of the City of Gretna, Louisiana, as of and for tbc: year ended March 31, 1997, nod have issued ollr report thereon dated September 15,1997. 
General of ~ United States; and the provisions of Office of Maongc.manl mad Budget (OMB) ~ A-.12g, "A~lits of State and Local Governments". Those standards mad OMB Circular A-128 require flat we. plau and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the g,morui purpose financial statements are free of material mLu~tatemanL The management of the City of Gre'ma. Louisiana, is responsible for este~blLshing and malntalnln~ an intorl~al control sU'uctoro. In fulfiIhng this responsibility, estimat~~ and judgments by management ase required to assess the expected benefits aud related costs of internal coutml structure policies and proc~:inres. The objeOJves of an internal control ~n,c~ure are to provide mana..~ with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded agahm loss from unat~orized w~ or disposition, end that transactions are executed in accordance with managcment's authorization and reworded properly to permit the preparation of these financial statements in ef~.ordauce with generally accepled accounting prmciples. Because of inherent limitations in any i~ conu'ol sm~turc, errors or hregularific:s may nevertheless uncur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the strocture to lumen periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequare because of chnnges in conditions or that the effectiveness of the design and operotion of policies and procedtuns may deteriorate. }n planning and performing our audit of the general pm]msc faumc.ial slate~nents of the City of Gretoa, Louisiana, for the year anded March 31, 1997, we obtained an understanding of the internal control ~a, ucture. With respect to the internal cout~01 atru~uro, we obtained an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and whether they have been planed in operafiem, and we assessed control risk m order to determine our auditing procedures for the propose of expxessing our opinion on the general purpose financial statements aad nol to provide an opinion on the internal control s~muture. Aceordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and its opentfion that we consider to be sepc)rtchle conditions under standards established by the Americ.au Institute of Certified Public Aca::otmtants. Reportable conditions involve mattet~ coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the interred conlrol stroctnrc that, in our jodgment, could adversely effect the City's ahilily to record, process, summarize and report financial data ~~lsisleut with the assertions of numageme~ltt in the gcoorui propose financial .~aatements of the City of Gretna, Louisiana. Due to the police departments failure to avail themselves of the City's cenlral pmr.haning department and rite associated lack of separation of duties in these department's documentation regarding compliance with cerlain provisions of the City's adopted purchasing procedure& Tbe .~ystcm of internal control with regard to these purchases could not be relied upon to disclose noncompliance: with the pay.basing pro~~m~. As a result, items could be purchased without following prescribed prcoednres. Personnel folders kept in the payroll department are often not complete or updated for pay rates and tax or elective withholding amounts. These records are kept in different departments or in a series of books which log changes in the payroll department. ~ We feel this practice weakens the system of intel'nal control over payroll disbursements and withholdings. A material w~..kness is a reportable: condition in which the design or oI~ratlon of one or more of the internal control smlcto~ ciemants does not xeduce to a relatively low level the risk that errors or irregularities in arrtounts that would be material in relation to the general propose financial statements bei ag andited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by crnployces in the normal course of performing their assigned function. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not neesssarily disclose all matters in the internal control struetorc that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not n~ly disclose: all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above:. However, we believe none of the reportchh: e4mditions described above is a material weakness. 
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Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 94 Wastbank Exprs~way -. Suite B, Gretna, LA 70053 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REIN3,RT ON COIVlHPLIANCE LAWS AND REGUI.~TIONS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PE~DRMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH "GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS" 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City of Gretna, Louisiaun 
We have audited the general purp(n~ finm~ial I~eteme~s of the City of Greta, Louilfiaua, as of and for the year unded March 31, 1997, und have issued oar report thereon dated September I $, 1997. We conducted our audit in a~xfrdance with generally a~.epte.d auditing standards, " Government Audi~ng Standards,~ issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales, and the provisions of Offiee of Management and Budget Circular A-128, "Audits of State and Local Governments" Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 requhn~ that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abom whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstetement. Compliance with lows, regulatior~ contracts, and grants epplienble to the City of Gretna, Louisiana, is the responsibility of the City of Gretna, Louisiana, management. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the general pu~i~se financial statements me fret of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City's complianoe with certain provisions of laws, rei,,uletions, contracts, and gnmts However, the objective of our audit of the: general purpose financial atat~rlents of the City of Gretn~ Louisiana, was not to provide an overall compliance with such provisions. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed the following instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported herein under Government Auditing Standards for which the ultimate t~solution cannot presently be determined., Accordingly, no provision for any liability that may result has been recognized in The City of~ Louisiana year ended March 31, 1997 fmaucial statemeu~. We noted tha'~ the budgeted expenditures of the Ambulance Fund, as adopted, exceeded the budget reserve und ar~umulated surplus which is e violation of LA Revised Statutes 39:1304. - We considered these instances of uoncompliance in forming our opinion on whether The City of Gretna, Lunisiana year ended Mexch 31, 1997 general purpose financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, and this report does not affect our report dated September 15, 1997, on those general purpose financial statements. We noted eercain other immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of the City of Grcm~ Louisiana, in o separate letter dated September 15, 1997. This report is intended for the information of management, aud the Ciw Council of the City of Gretoa and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana and should not be used for on)' other purpose. This rest~ietiou is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is o matter of public record 

A Profcssiomd Accounting Corporutinll 
Gretna. Louisiana September 15, 1997 
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Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 94 Westbonk Exp~euway - Suite B, Gretna, Louisiana INDIP, PENDEN'r AUDITORS REPORT ON THE INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE USED IN ADMffqlSTERING ]FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGR.~MS Honorable Mayor mad Members of the City Coundl of the City e f Gretna, Louisiana We have audite.d the general purpose fmancial statements of the City of Orema, Louisiana, for the year coded March 31, 1997, and have issued our report thereon dated September 15, 1997. We conducted our audit in accordance with gcoeral|y accepted auditing standerds; Government Auditing StmMards, issued by the Complrolh~ Generalofthe United Stotes; and OfficeofManagument andBudget (OMB)CireuiarA*128, "AuditsofStateand LocaIGovemments". Those standards and OMB Circalas A-128 requile that we plan and perform the. audit to obtain reasonable essutanen about whether the genera] propose fmancial statements m-e free ofmmerialmiunaze~mt In planning en.I performing our audit for the year ended March 31, 1997, we considered the City's inm~al control structure in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opininns on the City's general purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and accouot group fuulflcial atat~ents of the City of Gretna, Louisiana, control structure and to report on the internal control s'axtctore in acoordance with OMB Circular A-128. This report addresses our consideration of internal control structure policie~ and procedures relevant to complilmce with roquirements applicable to federal financial assi.qance prograu~. We have addressed internal contTol structure policies and prcoedur~ relevant to our audit of these finandal statements in n separate report dated September 15, 1997. The management of the City of Gretoa, Louisiana, is responsible for enablishing and maintaining an internal control structure. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management arc required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of internal control structure policies and procedures. The objectives of an internal control stmexure are to provide management with reasonable, but not abso|ut~, assurance that ILSSetS are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized ns~ ot d~pnsition and that transactions are exenuted in a~ordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the prermrarion of general purpose financial statements in au~rdance generally accepted accounting principles, and that federal financial a.ssislance programs arc managed in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Because of inh~t ltmitsfions in any internal control slructore, errors, irregularities, or instances of noncompliance may nevertheless oo.'ur and not be detected. Also, projection ofauy evaluation of the structure to future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of chauges in conditions or that the eff~tiveness of the design and operation of policies and procedures may deteriorate. For the purpose of this report~ we have cl&s.gified the significant internal control stnmtute policies and procedures used in administering federal financial assistencc programs in the following categories: Treasury/financing Revenues/receipts Purchases/disbursements Payroll Property.and equipment Grant adminisllation: Claims for advances and reimbursements Amounts claimed or used for matching General requirements: Drug free workplace Allowable costs/costs principles Administlative requirements Political activity Civil rights Cash management Federal financial reports Specific requirements: Types of services allowed or unallowed Eligibility Matching Level of effort Reporting 



For all of the internal control swaetore categories listed above, we ohtabted an understanding of the design of relevant policies and procedures and determined whether they have been placed in operation, artd we assessed control risk. During the year ended Match 31, 1997, the City of Grema, Louisiana, had no major federal financial assislance programs and ~xpcuded 100% of its total federal fmoncial assistance under the following nonmajor fade.rat fmonclal assistance programs: Deponment of Justice, Operation Municipal Task Force Dcpatimont of.Ins'rice Office of Community Oriented Policing ,~g'n,ices Department of Jnstice Local Law Enforeement Block Grant We performed tests of controls, as required by OMB Circular A-128, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of intCTm~ control structure policies and procedures that we have considered relevant to preventing or detecting m~Jcrial noncompliance with specific requirements, general rnquirements, and re.quire'monts governing claims for advances and reimbursements and amounts claimed or used for matching that are applicable to the aforelnentioned nonmajor prognmls. Our proondures were less in scope than would be necessary to rend~~ an opinion on these internal control structure policies and procedures. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. We noted ccnaln matters involving the intermfl control atnu:t~e und its tq~*ation that we ~onsid~~ to be repmlablc conditions under smxisrds established by the American Ins~al~ of Cc~fifled Public Acommlam~ R~laxtabl~ ccmdifions involve ~ coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal conlrol laructo~ that, in our judgmeng, could advea,~ly aff~~"t the City's ability to administar fedcrsl financial ~sistonce programs in accordance w/th applicable laws and regulations. Due to the police depàqmonts failure to avail themselves of the City's ceml'al purchasing department and the associated lack of separation of duties in these department's docomentation regarding compliance with certain provisions of the City's mtopted purchàsing pronedurc~. The system of internal control with regatd to these purchases could not be relied upon to disclose noncompliat)ce with the pu~Jmsing procedures As a result, items could be purchased without following prescribed pr~~edures. Personnel folders kept in the payroll department are often not complete or updated for pay rates and tax or elective withholding amounts. These records ate kept in different depm'unenls or in a series of books which log changes in the payroll department. We f~l this practice w~Lkan_~ the system of inlemal control over payroll disbursements and withholdings. A material weakness is a repostabla condition in which the design or openition of one or more of the internal onntrol structure elemonts does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with laws and regulations that would be martial to a federal financial assistarw.~ program may occur and not be d etac'a~d within u timely period by empinyces in the normal course of parfom~Jng their ~signed functions. Our considecation of the internal control structure policies and procerlures nsed in administering federal financial assistance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control structure that migin be reportable conditions and, e.e~.ordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be matea'ial weaknesses as defined above. Howevat, we believe none of the reportable conditions described above is e material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control structure and iLs operation that we have reported to the management of the Cib of Gretna, State of Louisiana in a s~'a~ letter daIexl Saptember 15, 1997. This report is intended for the infomtation of the administration and the City Council of the City of GreW.a, Louisiana, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana. This restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is u matter of public record. 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Gretna. Louisiana September 15, 1997 
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Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAl., ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 94 Westhank Expr'dSWOy - Suite B, Gretaa, LA 70053 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH TH]; GENERAL REQUIREMI~N'I'S APPLICABLE TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL, ASSL~;TANCE PROGRAMS 

llonorable M~vor and Members oftha City Council of the City of Gretna, Louisiana 
We have audited the general purpose fma~~,ial sta~m~ts of the Cily cff C~'~, ~ as of L~d for the ~ ended M~ 31, 1997 st~ have issued our report thcxcon ~1 .~'pte~tber 15,1997. 
Our procedure~ were limited to the applicable procedures described in the Office of Management ~ad Budget's "Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of Sta~e and Local Governments". Our procedures were subst~ntinlly le~ in scope than an attdit, the objective of which is the expression of sa~ opinion on the City of Grema, Louisiana's, compliance with the requirements listed in the preceding paragraph. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

]'his report is intended for the information of the administration and rite City Council of the City of Cnemt~ Louisiana and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana. "l'his restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is s, matter of public record. 
Edward L Carm~e~-, .~r., CPA A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Gretna, Louisi:ma September 15, 1997 



Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 94 Westbank Expr~sway - Suite B, Gretna, Louisiana 70053 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the City. of Gretna, Louisiana 
We have audited the genezM purpose fmaucial statements of the Cfly of Chetna, Louisiana, I~ of and for tile year e~ded March 31, 1997 aM have issued our ~l~Og thereon d~ed September 15, 1997. The~ fimmc4~l lialemtmts ate the re~ponsibifily of the City of C.netna, Louisiana management. Our llb-'ponsibility is to expzess ml opinion o~ these fwallCilll Illlelmm~ ~ oil our audit 

Edward L. Canmetar, Jr., CI'A A ProfessionsJ Accounting Corporation 
Gretna, Louisiana September 15, 1997 
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DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC"E: 

CITY OF GRETNA, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE YEAR ENDED MARCIt 31,1997 
CFDA NtrMSF.R 

Operatioe Municipal Tesk Force Grant 16.579 
Operation Municipal Task Force Grant 16.579 

GRAN'r 
96-B7-B.02 OI23 O1)07 

GRANT Pl~alIOD FROM ~t'HIROUGH 

95-B7-B.02 08/01/95 07/31/96 O1)O7 

TOTAL GRANT AWARD 
$ 161,355 

Office of Community Oriented Policing Service (COPS) 16.710 95-CF-WX4328 09114/95 11/30/99 299,220 
Local Law Enforcement Block Gimat 
TOTALS 

16.592 96-LB-VS2925 10/01/96 09/30/98 70.157 

The accorapanying notes arc a~t integral part of this statement. 
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ACCRUED CASH RECEIVED DURING YEAR ACCRUED TOTAL REVENUE OTHF~ REVENI~ REVENUE TOTAL MARCH 31.1996 ~ SOURCES ]~d, ARCH 31.1997 ][~.,C...,.Ql~d~ ZED EXPENDITURES 
$ 0 $ 0 $ 51,791 $ 71,256 $ 123,047 $ 96,729 
22,362 55,310 
~;,700 36,673 

0 42.948 43,103 
0 12,972 42,945 57,258 

$ 2~;*.062 $ .__L62.14. 0 $ 59.586 $ 94.228 $ 286.892 $ 270.602 



 



Edward L. Camnetar, Jr., CPA A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 94 Westbank Expressway - Suite B, Gretna, LA 70053 (594) 362-2544 FAX (~t~04) 362-2663 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Co uncil City of Gretna, Louisiana 

irregularities that may have occurred. However, our engagement did include such tests of the City's system and procedures to the extent we considered necessary to make an evaluation as required by generally accepted auditing standards and the Louisiana Municipal Audit and Accountinl~ Guit~. As a result of our review, we noted certain areas in the City's system and procedures where we believe improvements could be made. This memorandum summarizes our comments and suggestions. We will be pleased to discuss them with you and provide assistance in theirirnplementation. 

Edward L. Carnnetar, Jr., CPA A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Gretna, Louisiana September 15, 1997 



We would like at this time to take the opportunity to extend our thanks for the assistance given us during the course of our examination to Mayor Harris and Mr. DuSaules as well as their staff. The accompanying advisory comments refiect observations made during the course of this year's audit, as well as observations made in prior years. These observations are not intended as an evaluation of the performance of any of the City's personnel. We would be glad to review these findings with any member of the City's administration or governing body should further discussion be deemed necessary. 

l~lXl~D AISSEI~OUNTING . A significant amount inventory and tagging of the City's fixed asseLq. We would fixed assets and computerize the listing of these items. of time has passed since the last suggest that the City inventory its 

We recommend that all purchasing be done through central purchasing. 

We feel strongly that complete and updated personnel records should be maintained by the personnel department in a centralized location. We further feel the City should adopt a policy with regard to persounel records. 

We feel that the City should investigate implementation of a formal aggressive collection policy. 



- We noticed during the course of our review that the City's Police Department and Enterprise Funds have significantly overspent their budgets approaching the 5% overspending limit imposed by state law. We feel this overspending is due to a lack of budget monitoring by like management of the police department and enterprise funds during the course of the fiscal year. We feel that a formal budget monitoring program wcmld help reduce overspending and possible violations of the budget laws in the future. - As a result of changes in reimbursement allowances under the Medicare and Medicaid programs, funding of the operations of the Ambulance Fund is seriously deficient. This fund operated at a deficit of $107,830 for like year and has accumulated a fund deficit of $180,793. 'We feel that alternative funding methods must be located to continue the current level of services and restore the fund balance to a profitable level. 


